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 1                OLYMPIA, WASHINGTON; FEBRUARY 9, 2012

 2                             10:00 A.M.

 3   

 4                        P R O C E E D I N G S

 5   

 6            JUDGE CLARK:  Good morning.  It's approximately 10

 7   a.m. February 9, 2012, in the Commission's hearing room in

 8   Olympia, Washington.  This is the time and the place set for a

 9   prehearing conference in the matter of Washington Utilities and

10   Transportation Commission vs. Puget Sound Energy, given Docket

11   No. U-111465.  Patricia Clark, Administrative Law Judge for the

12   Commission, presiding.

13              This matter came before the Commission on December

14   14th, 2011, when the Washington Utilities and Transportation

15   Commission filed a complaint against Puget Sound Energy

16   alleging as many as 1,639 violations of Commission's rules by

17   charging a disconnection visit charge for visits other than for

18   the purpose of actual disconnection.

19              On December 30, 2011, Puget Sound Energy filed its

20   answer to the complaint.  By notice issued on January 5, 2012,

21   the Commission set the prehearing conference for this date,

22   time and place.

23              At this time, I'll take appearances on behalf of the

24   parties.

25              Appearing on behalf of the Commission Staff?
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 1            MR. FASSIO:  Michael Fassio, Assistant Attorney

 2   General.

 3            JUDGE CLARK:  Thank you, Mr. Fassio.

 4              Appearing on behalf of Puget Sound Energy?

 5            MR. KUZMA:  Jason Kuzma for Perkins Coie.

 6            JUDGE CLARK:  Thank you, Mr. Kuzma.

 7              Appearing on behalf of Public Counsel?

 8            MR. FFITCH:  Good morning, Your Honor.  Again, Simon

 9   ffitch on behalf of the Public Counsel Office.

10            JUDGE CLARK:  Thank you.

11              Are there any other individuals on the bridge line

12   who wish to be identified at this time?  Apparently not.

13              All right.  Then I will move directly to the

14   business at hand today.  Of course the primary purpose of

15   today's prehearing conference is to establish a procedural

16   schedule in this matter, but I would like to address first the

17   issue of consolidation.

18              In its notice of prehearing conference, the

19   Commission indicated that one topic for discussion this morning

20   is whether it would be an efficient use of party and Commission

21   resources to consolidate this matter for hearing with another

22   outstanding PSE complaint in Docket U-110808, and so I would

23   like to hear from the parties first on that topic because of

24   course that would impact the procedural schedule.  Mr. Fassio?

25            MR. FASSIO:  Thank you, your Honor.
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 1              First I'll preface by saying that Staff generally

 2   does support efforts to consolidate time and resources where

 3   it's appropriate.  I'm not assigned to represent Staff in the

 4   other complaint case that's referred to, so I personally won't

 5   recognize any efficiencies on my part and can't speak for that

 6   case.  Mr. Kuzma could certainly speak on behalf of his role in

 7   that.

 8              Staff is not advocating for consolidation at this

 9   time.  Frankly, I don't see compelling reasons in this case to

10   do so.  The two cases are -- they're different.  They involve

11   different issues, facts, unrelated issues of facts and law.

12   They're both based on independent investigations, and the

13   outcome of one would not really affect the outcome of the

14   other.

15              Another issue that Staff sees arguing against

16   consolidation relates to the timing of the two cases.  That

17   case precedes this one by a couple of months and it's on its

18   own track, and consolidating the two cases at this time could

19   impede the -- perhaps impede the resolution of that one, or

20   potentially impede the resolution of this one were this one

21   separate.  So there are some concerns there.

22              So I guess as a threshold matter, it's the unrelated

23   issues of law and fact that argue against consolidation in this

24   case, as well as Staff doesn't see any particular

25   administrative resources and timing issues that would benefit
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 1   Staff to consolidate this.

 2            JUDGE CLARK:  Thank you, Mr. Fassio.  Mr. Kuzma?

 3            MR. KUZMA:  PSE would agree with Staff and not support

 4   consolidation of this issue.  The issues of law and fact in the

 5   two proceedings are different, and PSE does not see there are

 6   any possibilities of efficiencies or economies to be achieved

 7   through consolidation.

 8            JUDGE CLARK:  And Mr. ffitch?

 9            MR. FFITCH:  Thank you, Your Honor.  We are in

10   agreement with the Company and with Staff on this matter.

11            JUDGE CLARK:  All right.

12              Well, I was hoping that it would have resulted in

13   some less work for the parties to address this in the context

14   of the other proceeding but appears that that will be difficult

15   to do so I am disinclined to consolidate these matters,

16   although I will note that while our rule requires similar

17   issues of law or fact in order to consolidate, in fact, we

18   don't typically do that.  And recently we did a complaint in

19   UW-101818, if my memory serves me correctly, which was a

20   complaint against a small water company which addressed a

21   number of violations that were completely and totally unrelated

22   to each other, but they did relate to the same facts at hand,

23   and we also typically in general rate cases consolidate a

24   number of tariffs that are completely and totally unrelated.

25   That having been said, the parties are not in favor of this
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 1   particular consolidation, so we'll work from that and handle

 2   these as individual matters.

 3              So that would move us to a procedural schedule to

 4   establish in this case.  Have the parties had an opportunity to

 5   confer regarding the proposed procedural schedule?

 6            MR. FASSIO:  We have not, Your Honor.  If I may

 7   interject one preliminary matter before we get to the schedule,

 8   it would be that Staff would request the invocation of the

 9   discovery rules in this proceeding.

10            JUDGE CLARK:  That's on the agenda a little bit later,

11   but we can do that now.  Is there any objection to finding that

12   the discovery rules should be applicable to this case?

13            MR. KUZMA:  No objection, Your Honor.

14            MR. FFITCH:  No objection.

15            JUDGE CLARK:  Thank you.  Then the discovery rules

16   will be applicable to this proceeding, and ordinarily, the time

17   deadlines for discovery to cease is a topic that is addressed

18   within the procedural schedule, so I presume the parties will

19   also address an expedited response time after a certain point

20   in the procedural schedule.

21              Any other preliminary matters?  All right.

22              Then would the parties like an opportunity to confer

23   and see if you can agree on a procedural schedule?  We're

24   nodding heads affirmatively.  Not picked up that great on the

25   sound system.
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 1            MR. FASSIO:  Staff has a framework to propose, and so

 2   we're optimistic that we can reach agreement.

 3            JUDGE CLARK:  All right.  I'm going to allow the

 4   parties to discuss that procedural schedule.  I will vacate the

 5   hearing room.  I'll be in my office, and we are at recess until

 6   further call.

 7                      (Pause in the proceedings from

 8                       10:08 a.m. to 10:20 a.m.)

 9   

10            JUDGE CLARK:  All right.  We're back on the record.

11   During the recess, have the parties had an adequate opportunity

12   to confer regarding the procedural schedule?

13            MR. FASSIO:  Yes, Your Honor.

14            JUDGE CLARK:  And have you reached agreement?

15            MR. FASSIO:  We have.

16            JUDGE CLARK:  All right.  If you would kindly

17   memorialize that for me on the record, Mr. Fassio.

18            MR. FASSIO:  Thank you.  The first date on our

19   schedule is a settlement conference, parties only, and we

20   scheduled that for March 22nd, 2012, obviously.  We decided on

21   prefiled testimony and a hearing in this matter, and we have a

22   date of June 1st, 2012 for direct testimony from Staff and

23   Public Counsel.

24            JUDGE CLARK:  I'm sorry, that's June 1?

25            MR. FASSIO:  June 1.
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 1            JUDGE CLARK:  Thank you.

 2            MR. FASSIO:  The second date for response testimony

 3   from the Company is July 6th, followed by rebuttal testimony

 4   from Staff and Public Counsel on August 3rd.

 5              We've tentatively agreed on a settlement -- a

 6   subsequent settlement conference, if necessary, among the

 7   parties for the week of August 13th.  And we've all agreed for

 8   a hearing date of September 11th, 2012, that's a Tuesday, and

 9   we would reserve the issue of whether briefing will be

10   necessary, so we don't have a date for that.

11            JUDGE CLARK:  And can you give me that evidentiary

12   hearing again?  September --

13            MR. FASSIO:  September 11th.

14            JUDGE CLARK:  All right.

15            MR. FASSIO:  We've also agreed regarding discovery

16   that the typical -- well, the typical response deadline

17   applies; however, following the first round of testimony, July

18   6, we agreed on a shortened time frame for response to

19   discovery of five business days and a discovery cutoff of

20   August 24th.

21            JUDGE CLARK:  All right.  The schedule proposed by the

22   parties is reasonable, and I will adopt it.  I would like to

23   just run through that very quickly to make sure I have all of

24   the dates accurately entered in.  The first deadline is for a

25   settlement conference.  The first settlement conference is
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 1   scheduled for March 22nd, 2012.  The parties agreed that the

 2   initial prefiled direct testimony and exhibits of Commission

 3   Staff and Public Counsel will be filed on June 1st.  The

 4   responsive testimony of Puget Sound Energy would be July 6,

 5   2012, and reply testimony would be August 3rd, 2012; is that

 6   correct?

 7            MR. FASSIO:  Yes.

 8            JUDGE CLARK:  The parties had also agreed on a second

 9   settlement conference, which would be convened on August 13,

10   2012.  If unsuccessful, that would be followed by an

11   evidentiary hearing on September 11, 2012.  The parties further

12   concurred to an expedited discovery deadline after July 6 of

13   five business days rather than the length of time provided by

14   rule, and finally that all discovery would cease on August

15   24th; is that correct?

16            MR. FASSIO:  Yes.

17            JUDGE CLARK:  All right.  Great.  Are there any other

18   matters that we need to address on the record this morning?

19            MR. FASSIO:  Well, one other thing, Your Honor.  I

20   don't know that we addressed whether the Company believes it

21   would be necessary to have a protective order in this

22   proceeding, so I would just address that.

23            JUDGE CLARK:  Mr. Kuzma?

24            MR. KUZMA:  I think it would be appropriate to have a

25   standard confidential protective order in this proceeding.
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 1            JUDGE CLARK:  All right.  The Commission will, by

 2   separate cover, issue its standard protective order in this

 3   matter.  For all filings, the Commission will require an

 4   original and three copies.

 5              Anything further?

 6            MR. FFITCH:  Your Honor, this is Simon ffitch for

 7   Public Counsel.  I just wanted to advise the Bench and the

 8   parties that we are still determining our level of

 9   participation.  We are interested in the issues, but due to

10   resources, we may or may not be filing written testimony in the

11   case, so I just want to be clear about that up front.  We'll

12   make that decision as the case progresses and let the Bench and

13   the parties know.

14            JUDGE CLARK:  Thank you.  Yes, if you could do that

15   via some form of filing in the record, that would be

16   appreciated, Mr. ffitch.

17            MR. FFITCH:  We'll do that.  Thank you, Your Honor.

18            JUDGE CLARK:  Anything further?

19              Hearing nothing, we're adjourned.

20            MR. FASSIO:  Thank you, Your Honor.

21            MR. KUZMA:  Thank you.

22            MR. FASSIO:  Thank you.

23                      (Hearing concluded at 10:26 a.m.)

24   

25                          -o0o-
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